


 

1 
 

 

City of Rainier 

Regular City Council Meeting 

April 4, 2023 

6 p.m. 

Rainier City Hall 

 

 

Mayor Jerry Cole called the council meeting to order at 6 p.m.  

 

Council Present: Connie Budge, Scott Cooper, Robert duPlessis, Jeremy Howell, Mike 

Kreger and Denise Watson  

 

Council Absent: None  

 

City Attorney Present: No 

 

City Staff Present: Sarah Blodgett, City Recorder; W. Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator 

  

Flag Salute 

 

Additions/Deletions from the Agenda: Cole said that the representatives from the Rainier 

Drainage Improvement Company were unable to attend this meeting, so he wanted that agenda 

item to be tabled. Council agreed by consensus.  

 

Mayor’s Address: Cole read a proclamation into the record in support of HOPE. He and 

Rainier High School Teacher Andrew Demko presented awards to several students and adult 

volunteers.  

 

Visitor Comments: Al Guist said that his wife Kris tripped on a sidewalk and was injured. 

City Administrator W. Scott Jorgensen said he can contact the property owner, who is 

responsible. He can also put together and distribute a writeup informing residents that they are 

responsible for the sidewalks adjacent to their properties and have the public works department 

do an inventory to see which ones are in need of repair. Council agreed by consensus. Jodi 

Roth said she wants to get a group of people together to do a litter cleanup around town. Cole 

said the city has done those kinds of cleanups before and can provide trash bags for those 

efforts.  

 

Consider Approval of the Consent Agenda 

Consider Approval of the March 6, 2023 Regular Council Meeting Minutes, March 13, 

2023 Council Goal Setting Workshop Minutes and Monthly Financial Statements—Council 

President Mike Kreger moved to approve the consent agenda. That motion was seconded 

by Councilor Scott Cooper and adopted unanimously.  
 

New Business  

          a. Senior Center Update—Jan Rich said that there have been more building rentals and that  

              the center served 3,000 meals in the first quarter of the year.  

          b. Columbia County Housing Implementation Plan Presentation—Cascadia Partners urban  

              planner Jamin Kimmell said the report is being finalized after nearly a year of work. There  

              is an anticipated need for 100-235 housing units on a long-term basis. He went over the  



 

2 
 

              strategies that can be used to help with more housing development. The cities in Columbia  

              County are being asked to adopt the plan by resolution. However, consensus among  

              council is that the city is not ready to adopt it. Jorgensen said that the Housing Committee  

              and Planning Commission were fine with some of the recommendations, but not all of  

              them.  

          c. Discussion with the Rainier Drainage Improvement Company 

          d. Resolution 22-04-01—Establishing that the City Will Prepare a Two-Year Budget for the  

              2023-25 Biennium—Kreger moved to approve the resolution. That motion was seconded    

              by Cooper and adopted unanimously.  

          e. Letter of Engagement with Summer Sears, CPA—Cooper moved to approve the letter of  

              engagement. That motion was seconded by Kreger and adopted unanimously.   

          f. Approve Budget Calendar—Councilor Connie Budge moved to approve the budget  

              calendar. That motion was seconded by Kreger and adopted unanimously. 

          g. Budget Committee Appointments—Jorgensen said there were three vacancies and three  

              applicants. Kreger moved to appoint all three applicants to the budget committee. That  

              motion was seconded by Cooper and adopted unanimously. Kreger moved to appoint  

              Leslie Rist to the REDCO budget committee. That motion was seconded by Cooper and  

              adopted unanimously.  

          h. City Council Appointment—Kreger moved to appoint Paul Langer to the vacant council  

              position. That motion was seconded by Cooper and adopted unanimously.  

          i. First Reading of Ordinance 1089—Prohibiting Camping at Certain Public Properties 

          j. First Reading of Ordinance 1090—Amending Portions of Ordinance 910 

         k. Approve Collective Bargaining Agreement with Teamsters Local 58-Rainier Police— 

             Cooper moved to approve the agreement. That motion was seconded by Budge and  

             adopted unanimously.  

 

     7. Unfinished Business 

          a. Fox Creek Update—There was no update at this time.   

 

     Staff Report—Jorgensen said he met with representatives of Youth Era, touched bases with  

     members of the budget committee and worked with Demko to organize the April 15 Walk  

     Through History event. He spoke with Ree Armitage from U.S. Senator Ron Wyden’s office  

     about getting a letter of support for grant funding for the Fox Creek project and toured the  

     Dibblee property with Mayor Cole and Public Works Director Sue Lawrence. The city now  

     officially owns the property. He submitted the city’s request for state funding for water line and  

     sewer line rehabilitation projects and toured downtown businesses that are set to open soon  

     with Councilor Robert duPlessis. Jorgensen attended Col-Pac, NWACT, Columbia Economic  

     Team, Rainier Chamber of Commerce board, Columbia County Housing Implementation Plan  

     and library board meetings. He distributed information about the city’s funding requests  

     to the members of the legislature’s Ways and Means Subcommittee on Capital Construction,  

     finalized the budget calendar, met with Regional Solutions with Lawrence and worked with an  

     attorney from CIS to put together Ordinance 1089.  

     Council Reports—Councilor Denise Watson announced that she has been appointed to the CC 

Rider board of directors. Kreger said he and Jorgensen went to Tillamook to meet with officials 

there about a veterans memorial and that he attended the annual city/county meeting.   

     City Calendar/Announcements 

 

 

  

 



 

3 
 

     Cole adjourned the meeting at 7:55 p.m.  

 

 

  

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________              ______________________________________ 

Mayor Jerry Cole                         W. Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





ORDINANCE NO. 1089 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF RAINIER PROHIBITING CAMPING AT 

CERTAIN PUBLIC PROPERTIES 

 

 

Section 1. Definitions. 

 

For purposes of this section, the following words and phrases shall mean: 

a. To “Camp” means to occupy a Campsite for over 24 hours.  

 

b. “Campsite” means a location upon City Property where Camping Materials are placed. 

 

c. “Camping Materials” include, but are not limited to, tents, huts, awnings, lean-tos, chairs, 

tarps, collections of personal property and/or similar items that are, or reasonably appear 

to be, arranged and/or used as camping accommodations. 

 

d. “City Property” includes, but is not limited to, parks, rights of way, parking lots, easements, 

or other land owned, leased, controlled, or managed by the City. 

 

e. “Personal Property” means any item that can reasonably be identified as belonging to an 

individual and that has apparent value or utility. 

 

f. “Relocate” means to move off of City Property or to a different City Property. This 

definition does not include moving to another portion of the same City Property.  

Section 2. Camping Prohibited Upon City Property 

 

1. It is unlawful for any person to Camp upon City Property unless otherwise authorized by law or 

by declaration of the City Administrator.  

 

2. Unless otherwise authorized by law or by declaration of the City Administrator, it is unlawful 

to establish a Campsite for any period of time at the following locations: 

 

a. City Hall and adjacent sidewalks, 106 W B Street; 

b. Senior Center and adjacent sidewalks, 48 W 7th Street; 

c. City of Rainier Marina and adjacent parking lot, 107 W C. Street; 

d. Riverfront Park and Trail; 

e. Sewer Treatment Plant, 690 W A Street; and 

f. Water Treatment Plant, 650 E Rainier Blvd.  

 

3. At least once every 24 hours an individual that has placed a Campsite, Camping Materials or 

Personal Property on City Property must Relocate.  

 



3. The City shall only remove individuals and unclaimed Personal Property from a Campsite as 

provided by ORS 195.505. 

  

4. Violation of this section is punishable by a fine of not more than $125. The amount imposed 

shall be at the discretion of the judge.   

 

5. If the City refers a service provider to an individual who is cited for a violation of this Section 

and the individual demonstrates they meaningfully engaged with that or another similar service 

provider after receiving the citation and before the hearing, the fine is eligible to be reduced or 

eliminated at the discretion of the judge.  

 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after thirty (30) days from the date of its 

passage and publication as provided by law. 

 

 

Passed by the City of Rainier council and approved by the mayor on the ____ date of _____, 2023.  

 

                                                                                                   Attested: 

 

BY: _________________________________         BY:_________________________________ 

       Jerry Cole, Mayor                                            Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator  

 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 1090 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF RAINIER AMENDING PORTIONS OF 

ORDINANCE 910 

 

WHEREAS, City Council passed Ordinance 910 in May 1987 for the Impounding and 

Disposition of Discarded Vehicles; and 

 

WHEREAS, portions of Ordinance 910 are outdated and no longer meet the City’s needs; and 

 

WHEREAS, it appears to the City of Rainier council that the public interest will best be served 

by amending portions of this ordinance. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Rainier ordains as follows: 

Section 5 (1) of Ordinance 910 is hereby amended as follows: “That a certain discarded vehicle is in 

violation of this ordinance and that within three days after sending or posting the notice” 

Section 5 (2) of Ordinance 910 is hereby amended as follows: “That the alternative to compliance with 

subsection (1) is to petition the City recorder within the three-day period described in subsection (1) and 

make a written request to appear before the council to show why the vehicle should not be immediately 

abated” 

Section 6 of Ordinance 910 is hereby repealed.  

Section 8 (1) of Ordinance 910 is hereby amended as follows: “Three days after giving the notice 

required in Section 4 or, if a hearing is held, three days after adoption of a resolution declaring a vehicle 

to be a public nuisance as required in Section 7, the city will have jurisdiction to abate the nuisance and 

may remove the vehicle by use of city employees or authorized independent contractors.” 

Except as amended herein, remaining portions of Ordinance 910 shall remain in full force and effect.  

Passed by the City of Rainier council and approved by the mayor on the ____ date of _____, 2023.  

 

                                                                                                   Attested: 

 

BY: _________________________________         BY:_________________________________ 

       Jerry Cole, Mayor                                            Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator  

 

 

 

 

 

 













City Administrator Report 

May 1, 2023 Rainier Council Meeting 

 

Mayor Cole and Members of the Council, 

 

I spent March 24 and 27 preparing the city’s budget document. On March 28, I had a meeting 

with officials from the Oregon Department of Transportation about the city’s short and long-term 

transportation priorities. I also finalized setting appointments with members of the legislature’s 

Ways and Means Subcommittee on Capital Construction.  

 

On March 31, I met with Councilor Scott Cooper about council chamber improvements and 

establishing a Neighborhood Watch program for his area. Mayor Cole and I finalized the 

purchase of a 25-acre piece of property outside of city limits for future trail expansion. I also 

completed a pre-application that day for an update to the city’s Transportation System Plan.  

 

Along with City Planner Skip Urling, I met with county planning officials on April 4 about the 

potential urban growth boundary expansion. I attended the library’s board meeting on April 14. 

Later on that day, Mayor Cole and I began setting up the new PA system in the council 

chambers. 

 

The following day, I served as emcee for the Walk Through History event at the park.  

 

I met with county emergency manager Chris Carey on April 19. On April 19, myself, Mayor 

Cole and Council President Mike Kreger went to the state capitol in Salem to meet with the 

members of the Ways and Means Subcommittee on Capital Construction. The purpose of our 

visit was to lobby for state funding for a city water line project and a sewer line rehabilitation 

project.  

 

Finally, on April 22, I portrayed former Oregon Territorial Governor Joseph Lane at the Rainier 

Revisited event at the Beaver Homes Grange.  

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

W. Scott Jorgensen, Executive MPA 

City Administrator 



CITY OF RAINIER
CASH ON HAND/GENERAL LEDGER RECONCILIATION REPORT
CHECKING ACCOUNTS AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT POOL ACCOUNT
3/1/2023-3/31/2023

ACCOUNT REGISTER SUMMARY CKS/DEBITS DEP/CREDITS
Ending Balance 410,532.02
PERS Adjustment

New Ending Balance 410,532.02 0.00 0.00 410,532.02

BANK STATEMENT SUMMARY CKS/DEBITS DEP/CREDITS
Ending Balance SHCU 760072-1 34,353.37
Ending Balance SHCU 760072-2 438,043.56
Deposits not Shown on Statement 8,166.46
Outstanding Cks and Other Debits 46,673.97
PERS Outstanding 23,357.40
PERS Adjustment
Ending Balance 472,396.93 70,031.37 8,166.46 410,532.02 0.00

LGIP STATEMENT SUMMARY
Beginning Balance 6,867,534.12
Deposits 31471.28
Withdrawals 
Interest 21,950.64
S/C 0.10
Ending Balance 6,867,534.12 0.10 53,421.92 6,920,955.94

TOTAL CASH 7,331,487.96

GENERAL LEDGER RECONCILIATION
3/1/2023-3/31/2023

03/01/23 03/31/23
Beginning Total Total Ending

Fund Balance Revenue Expense Liabilities Balance
10 General 2,462,933.72 182,176.55 186,380.54 2,458,729.73
20 Debt 364,095.76 0.00 0.00 364,095.76
30 Sewer 440,468.13 73,145.70 308,022.48 205,591.35
40 Water 351,167.73 71,100.25 351,217.76 71,050.22
50 Timber 1,648,373.39 0.00 6,140.73 1,642,232.66
60 Street 360,769.49 9,302.41 239,378.47 130,693.43
65 0.00 0.00 0.00
70 0.00 0.00 0.00
81 Special Projects 360,779.53 0.00 18,779.23 342,000.30
83 Sewer Capital 885,075.85 260,000.00 12,284.86 1,132,790.99
84 Water Capital 76,722.42 322,557.34 45,114.68 354,165.08
85 Transportation Capital 323,322.56 449,658.00 226,045.82 546,934.74
90 Library Trust 83,443.95 52.11 292.36 83,203.70

0.00
General Ledger Total 7,357,152.53 7,331,487.96 0.00

Completed by:______ Date:_______ Approved by: ______ Date:________ 



City of Rainier
2022/2023 Budget Year
3/31/2023 Income/Expense
Budget Compared to Actual-Major Funds

2022/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023
General Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 1,591,980 1,627,011 102.20%
**Expenditures 1,440,361 992,420 68.90%

2022/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023
Sewer Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 1,487,053 1,177,800 79.20%
Expenditures 1,778,036 1,498,918 84.30%

2022/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023
Water Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 967,000 725,597 75.04%
Expenditures 1,177,491 1,002,321 85.12%

2022/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023
Timber Fund YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 0 0 0.00%
Expenditures 254,412 67,041 26.35%

2022/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023
Street Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 259,059 273,467 105.56%
Expenditures 453,555 364,440 80.35%

*Excludes Beginning Balance
**Excludes Transfers



City of Rainier
2022/2023 Budget Year
3/31/2023
Budget Compared to Actual-Major Funds
Budget Variance by Appropriation

2022/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023
General Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 1,591,980 1,627,011 102.20%
Expenditures

10 **General Government 91,143 68,019 74.63%
20 City Building Maintenance 17,500 6,174 35.28%
30 Land Use & Development 30,058 19,782 65.81%
50 Library 73,960 45,280 61.22%
60 Attorney 9,600 3,981 41.47%
70 Finance & Administration 49,731 30,647 61.62%
80 Municipal Court 62,585 41,264 65.93%
90 Public Properties 179,423 120,731 67.29%

100 Police Department 926,361 656,541 70.87%

2022/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023
Sewer Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 1,487,053 1,177,800 79.20%
Expenditures
Personnel Services 451,696 339,516 75.16%
Material & Services 315,100 199,372 63.27%
Capital Outlay 7,500 4,289 57.19%
Transfers 955,740 955,740 100.00%
Contingencies 48,000 0 0.00%

2022/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023
Water Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 967,000 725,597 75.04%
Expenditures
Personnel Services 486,105 367,572 75.62%
Material & Services 212,550 168,124 79.10%
Capital Outlay 7,500 4,289 57.19%
Transfers 462,336 462,336 100.00%
Contingencies 9,000 0 0.00%

2022/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023
Timber Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 0 0 0.00%
Expenditures
Material & Services 90,300 62,752 69.49%
Capital Outlay 14,000 4,289 30.64%
Contingencies 50,000 0 0.00%
Propery Purchase Reserve 100,112 0 0.00%

2022/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023
Street Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 259,059 273,467 105.56%
Expenditures
Personnel Services 68,076 54,281 79.74%
Material & Services 126,150 81,040 64.24%
Capital Outlay 7,500 4,289 57.19%
Contingencies 27,000 0 0.00%
Transfers 224,829 224,829 100.00%

*Excludes Beginning Balance 
**Excludes Transfers








	4 Pixley
	6 CC 04032023 minutes
	7b Rich Application
	8b Ordinance 1089
	8c Ordinance 1090
	8c Ordinance 910
	City Administrator Report
	March 2023 Bank Reconciliation
	March 2023 Budget Comparison
	March 2023 Budget Variance
	March 2023 Check Register

